
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
RHONDDA CYNON TAF

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

GWŶS I GYFARFOD O'R CYNGOR

C.Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Y Pafiliynau 
Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian 
Cwm Clydach, CF40 2XX

Dolen gyswllt: Hannah Williams - Uned Busnes y Cyngor - Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol  (01443 424062) 

DYMA WŶS I CHI i gyfarfod o Pwyllgor ARCHWILIO yn cael ei gynnal yn 
Ystafell Bwllgor 1, Y Pafiliynau, Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian, Cwm 
Clydach, Tonypandy CF40 2XX ar Dydd MAWRTH, 5ED TACHWEDD, 
2019 am 5.00 PM.

Caiff Aelodau nad ydyn nhw'n aelodau o'r pwyllgor  ac aelodau o'r cyhoedd gyfrannu 
yn y cyfarfod ar faterion y cyfarfod er bydd y cais yn ôl doethineb y 
Cadeirydd. Gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i Wasanaethau Democrataidd erbyn Dydd 
Gwener, 1 Tachwedd 2019 trwy ddefnyddio'r manylion cyswllt uchod, gan gynnwys 
rhoi gwybod a fyddwch chi'n siarad Cymraeg neu Saesneg.

AGENDA
Tudalennau

1. DATGAN BUDDIANT 
Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau, yn unol â gofynion y 
Cod Ymddygiad.

Nodyn:
1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 

buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol 
hwnnw; a

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu buddiant 
sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan fyddan 
nhw'n gadael.

2. COFNODION 
Derbyn cofnodion o gyfarfod blaenorol y Pwyllgor Archwilio a gafodd ei gynnal 
ar 16 Medi 2019.

3 - 6



3. RÔL YR ARCHWILIAD MEWNOL (YN CYNNWYS DIWEDDARIAD AR 
Y GWASANAETH ARCHWILIO MEWNOL RHANBARTHOL A 
RENNIR) 
Derbyn cyflwyniad. 

7 - 24
4. RÔL ARCHWILIO ALLANOL (SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU) 

Derbyn cyflwyniad. 

5. CYFLAWNIAD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL 
25 – 40

6. ASEINIADAU ARCHWILIO TERFYNOL 
41 – 78

7. TROSOLWG O'R TREFNIADAU LLYWODRAETHU SYDD AR WAITH 
MEWN PERTHYNAS Â'R SYSTEM ARIANNOL GRAIDD - 
CYFRIFLYFR CYFFREDINOL 
Derbyn cyflwyniad.

79 – 90

8. MATERION BRYS 
Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn faterion brys yng 
ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig.

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu
Cylchreliad:-

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol:
Y Cynghorydd K Jones, Y Cynghorydd G Caple, Y Cynghorydd A Cox, 
Y Cynghorydd J Cullwick, Y Cynghorydd M Fidler Jones, Y Cynghorydd M Adams, 
Y Cynghorydd M Powell, Y Cynghorydd G Davies, Y Cynghorydd  M Norris, 
Y Cynghorydd Owen-Jones, Y Cynghorydd S Rees, Y Cynghorydd G Hughes, 
Y Cynghorydd S Powell and Y Cynghorydd R Yeo

Aelod Lleyg – Mr R. Hull



 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee meeting held on Monday, 16 September 

2019 at 5.00 pm at the Committee Room 1, The Pavilions, Cambrian Park, Clydach Vale, 
Tonypandy, CF40 2XX. 

 
Chair in attendance:- 

Mr R. Hull 
 

County Borough Councillors - Audit Committee Members in attendance:- 
 

Councillor K Jones Councillor G Caple 
Councillor A Cox Councillor J Cullwick 

Councillor M Adams Councillor G Davies 
Councillor M Norris Councillor D Owen-Jones 
Councillor S Rees Councillor G Hughes 

Councillor S Powell Councillor R Yeo 
 
 

Officers in attendance 
 

Mr A Wilkins, Director of Legal Services 
Mr P Griffiths, Service Director – Finance & Improvement Services 

Mr M Thomas, Head of Regional Internal Audit Service 
Ms L Cumpston, Group Audit Manager 

Ms S Davies, Head of Finance 
Ms H Williams, Wales Audit Office 

 
 

21   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from County Borough Councillors 
M. Fidler Jones and M. Powell. 
 

 

22   Declaration of Interest  
 

 

 In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, the following 
declarations of interest were made:  
 

• County Borough Councillor S. Rees declared a personal interest in 
Item 4 – Internal Audit Finalised Audit Assignments – Community 
Infrastructure Levy. “I am Chair of the Planning and Development 
Committee, whereby developments which are liable for CIL are 
considered” 
 

• County Borough Councillor R. Yeo declared a personal interest in 
Item 4 – Internal Audit Finalised Audit Assignments – Community 
Infrastructure Levy. “I am a member of the Planning and 
Development Committee, whereby developments which are liable 

 

Tudalen 3

Agendwm 2



 

for CIL are considered” 
 

• County Borough Councillor G. Caple declared a personal interest 
in Item 4 – Internal Audit Finalised Audit Assignments – 
Community Infrastructure Levy. “I am a member of the Planning 
and Development Committee, whereby developments which are 
liable for CIL are considered” 
 

• County Borough Councillor G. Hughes declared a personal and 
prejudicial interest in Item 4 – Internal Audit Finalised Audit 
Assignments – Ysgol Nantgwyn. “I am on the Governing Body of 
Ysgol Nantgwyn. I believe my personal interest is not prejudicial 
because of the exemption set out in paragraph 12(2)(a)(iii) of the 
Code of Conduct” 

 
• County Borough Councillor G. Hughes declared a personal interest 

in Item 4 Internal Audit Finalised Audit Assignments – Community 
Infrastructure Levy. “I am a member of the Planning and 
Development Committee, whereby developments which are liable 
for CIL are considered” 

 
• County Borough Councillor J. Cullwick declared a personal interest 

in Item 4 – Internal Audit Finalised Audit Assignments – Ysgol 
Nantgwyn. “I am on the Governing Body of Ysgol Nantgwyn. I 
believe my personal interest is not prejudicial because of the 
exemption set out in paragraph 12(2)(a)(iii) of the Code of 
Conduct” 

 
• County Borough Councillor S. Powell declared a personal interest 

in Item 4 – Internal Audit Finalised Audit Assignments – 
Community Infrastructure Levy. “I am a member of the Planning 
and Development Committee, whereby developments which are 
liable for CIL are considered” 

 
• County Borough Councillor S. Powell declared a personal and 

prejudicial interest in Item 4 – Internal Audit Finalised Audit 
Assignments – Tonysguboriau Primary School. “My wife is a 
teacher at Tonysguboriau Primary School and I am on the 
Governing Body, therefore I will leave this meeting whilst the audit 
report is considered” 
 

 
23   Minutes  

 
 

 It was RESOLVED to approve the minutes of the 15th July 2019 as an 
accurate reflection of the meeting. 
 

 

24   Wales Audit Office - Management Letter for 2018/19  
 

 

 Ms H. Williams of the Wales Audit Office provided the Committee with an  

Tudalen 4



 

overview of the Management Letter for 2018-19 for Rhondda Cynon Taf 
County Borough Council. Members were referred to Appendix 1 of the 
report, where findings and recommendations from the 2018-19 audit work 
were set out.  
 
Members sought clarification in respect of the recommendation detailed at 
‘Matter arising 3’ of the letter. Wales Audit Office confirmed that the 
Council had successfully met the challenging earlier closure of accounts 
deadline of 31st July, 2 years earlier than required by the regulations. It 
was added that an audit deliverables document was piloted for the 
2018/19 audit (that set out timescales for the Council to provide working 
papers to the Wales Audit Office) and lessons learned will be taken 
account in preparing for the 2019/20 audit to help further improve the 
efficiency of the audit.  
 
Members were pleased with the positive update and following a number 
of questions, the Committee RESOLVED to acknowledge the update. 
 
 
 

25   Internal Audit - Finalised Audit Assignments  
 

 

 (Note: Having previously declared an interest (Minute No. 22), County 
Borough Councillor S. Powell left the meeting during the consideration of 
the Tonysguboriau Primary School 2019/20 audit report). 
 
The Head of Regional Internal Audit Service introduced the report of the 
Director of Finance and Digital Services in respect of the audit 
assignments completed between 2nd July 2019 and 31st August 2019. 
 
Members were asked to consider the following audit assignments: 
 

• Chief Executive – Community Infrastructure Levy 2018/19; 
• Finance and Digital Services – Performance Indicators 2019/20; 
• Community and Children’s Services – Supported Living 2018/19; 
• Community and Children’s Services – Youth Offending Service 

2019/20; 
• Education and Inclusion Services – Post 16 Planning and Funding 

2018/19; 
• Education and Inclusion Services – Ysgol Nantgwyn 2018/19; 
• Education and Inclusion Services – Tonysguboriau Primary School 

2019/20; 
• Education and Inclusion Services – Rhigos Primary School 

2019/20; and 
• Prosperity, Development and Frontline Services – Highways 

Capital Programme 2019/20. 
 
In respect of the Audit report for Post 16 Planning and Funding 2018/19, 
Members expressed concern around the sample of six schools failing to 
complete their AM/PM registers correctly. Although Members 

 

Tudalen 5



 

acknowledged that the attendance requirements for sixth form pupils 
differ from that of lower school pupils, they felt that there should be a clear 
process in place to ensure that attendance is registered and maintained 
efficiently, in order to safeguard all pupils. Members were advised that the 
Director, Education and Inclusion Services would report the findings of the 
audit to the schools and that an effective registration process would be 
sought. Furthermore, assurance was given that Post 16 Planning and 
Funding 2019/20 was in the Audit Plan for Quarter 3 and that a new 
sample of schools would be subject to the audit. 
 
Discussions ensued around the internal audit report for Ysgol Nantgwyn, 
with Members acknowledging the school’s pro-active request for 
assistance and a follow up review. The Head of Regional Internal Audit 
Service took the opportunity to speak of the newly developed self-
evaluation toolkit for Comprehensive schools, which was discussed at the 
previous meeting of the Audit Committee. Members were pleased to learn 
that following approval by the Director, Education and Inclusion Services, 
Internal Audit had been asked to attend the next Secondary 
Headteachers meeting to introduce the concept of the self-evaluation 
process and a presentation would be provided to Head Teachers in 
October 2019. Furthermore, Internal Audit had been asked to provide a 
presentation to newly appointed Primary School Head Teachers on Friday 
20th September in respect of the role of Internal Audit and the self-
evaluation checklist that is already in place for Primary schools. It was 
highlighted that this would put them in good stead for future internal 
audits. Members were pleased with the update and requested a follow up 
audit of Ysgol Nantgwyn to be presented to the Committee in six months’ 
time. 
 
Members of the Committee were particularly pleased with the evidence of 
good practice set out within the Rhigos Primary School internal audit 
report and agreed for a letter of congratulations to be sent to the Head 
Teacher. 
 
Following discussion, it was RESOLVED: 
 

a) To receive and acknowledge the information contained within the 
report; 

b) To receive a follow up audit of Ysgol Nantgwyn in six months’ time; 
and 

c) That a letter of congratulations is sent to the Head Teacher of 
Rhigos Primary School  

 
 
 

This meeting closed at 5.50 pm R Hull 
Chairman. 

 

Tudalen 6



1

Role of Internal Audit & 

Update on the Shared Service

Mark Thomas CPFA, MAAT, MStJ

Head of Regional Internal Audit Service

5th November 2019

T
udalen 7

A
gendw

m
 3



2

Introduction
Personal Background & Experience

Ø Mid Glamorgan County Council – 5 years 

Ø Gwent County Council  - 3 years

Ø Merthyr Tydfil BC & CBC – 25 years

Ø NHS Capital & PFI Audit – 6 months 

Ø Fully Qualified CIPFA Accountant, Accounting Technician 

& Programme Manager

Ø 22 years experience as Internal Auditor/Manager

Ø 9 years Corporate Management Team experience 

including leading IA Service alongside a range of other 

services

Ø 2 years private sector Director experience

T
udalen 8



Background to the Service
Ø Initially established as a Shared Service for Bridgend & Vale of 

Glamorgan in 2013 (hosted by VofG)

Ø Discussions started in 2017 over the expansion of service to include 

RCT and Merthyr Tydfil.

Ø Decisions made join up to the expanded Shared Service in summer 

2018 by the respective Councils.

Ø Service established on 1st April 2019 with staff transferred to VofG

employment.

Ø Staff still based in each of the 4 Councils 

Ø Oversight of the Service is in the form of a Joint Partnership Board 

and comprising of Section 151 Officers from each Council as well as 

each Audit Committee. 

3

T
udalen 9



Objectives Identified
Ø The service is affordable and is delivering efficiencies 

and economies of scale; 

Ø The service enhances the professionalism and quality of 

audit services provided to each Council through shared 

knowledge and best practice; 

Ø The service is flexible and can respond to changing 

service requirements and priorities; 

Ø The service can extend access to specialist audit 

services and other related disciplines to each Council; 

Ø The service conforms with the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards, with no significant deviations noted.

4

T
udalen 10



Opportunities/Benefits
Ø To further improve the resilience of the service by creating a larger 

team of staff. 

Ø To develop in-house specialist audit skills not currently in place, 

such as contract and computer auditing, that will add value to key 

areas of the Council’s business and provide development 

opportunities for team members; 

Ø To further modernise the service by applying consistent working 

practices and optimising the use of information technology and agile 

working; and

Ø To take advantage of the economies of scale and in-house specialist 

audit skills to develop a more commercial approach whilst ensuring 

the Service’s core business is maintained.

5

T
udalen 11



Immediate priorities & achievements  

for the service

Ø Ensure a seamless transition from previous 

arrangements 

Ø Ensure IA plans for each Council have been developed, 

consulted on and are deliverable within the likely 

resources available

Ø Production of Annual Internal Audit Reports for each 

Council 

Ø Continue to support all four Audit Committees

Ø Continue to deliver the planned Audits for each Council

6

T
udalen 12



Priorities for the first 12 months

Ø Develop Structure taking into account TUPE 

requirements and SWOT analysis (using South West 

Audit Partnership - SWAP to fill the gap in the short term)

Ø Confirm ICT Solution & Arrangements

Ø Identify & evaluate different approaches/ methodologies 

of each IA team and identify most appropriate to adopt

7

T
udalen 13



Ensuring longer term success of the 

service

Ø Development of Commercial Approach 

l Analysis of potential public sector market

8

Neighbouring Councils Colleges/Universities

Police Registered Social Landlords

Town & Community Councils Leisure Trusts

Fire Service Welsh Government & Agencies

T
udalen 14



Role of Internal Audit
Ø Statutory Service - All local authorities in Wales have a legal duty to 

maintain appropriate and effective internal audit arrangements as 

set out in the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2018

Ø Audit Charter - Defines the purpose, authority and responsibilities of 

the Regional Internal Audit Shared Service. 

Ø Definition - ‘Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance 

and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an 

organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its 

objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate 

and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 

governance processes’ – Public Sector Internal Audit Standards – March 2017

Ø Our main role is to check that Policies & Procedures are being 

complied with and to give an opinion on the arrangements in place. 

9

T
udalen 15



Role of Internal Audit(cont)
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards provide the following 

definitions for assurance and consultancy work: 

Ø Assurance Services - An objective examination of evidence for the 

purpose of providing an independent assessment on governance, 

risk management and control processes for the organisation. 

Examples may include financial, performance, compliance, system 

security and due diligence engagements. 

Ø Consulting Services - Advisory and related client service activities, 

the nature and scope of which are agreed with the client, are 

intended to add value and improve an organisation’s governance, 

risk management and control processes without the Internal Auditor 

assuming management responsibility. 

Ø Provided to the 4 Councils in the Shared Service as well as external 

parties e.g. Amgen and the Central South Consortium Joint 

Education Service. 

10

T
udalen 16



Role of Service(cont)
Ø It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a 

systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 

effectiveness of risk management, control and governance;

Ø Support the Chief Finance Officers to discharge their s151 duties;

Ø Contribute to and support Directorates with the objective of ensuring 

the provision of, and promoting the need for, sound financial 

systems; 

Ø Investigate allegations of fraud or irregularity to help safeguard public 

funds in consultation with other Council Services;

Ø Support the work of the relevant Audit Committees; and

Ø Provide an annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk 

management and control. 

11

T
udalen 17



Internal Audit Plan for RCTCBC 

2019/20
A total of 1,193 audit days covering a range of audits e.g.

Ø Schools, Attendance & Wellbeing Service, Grants, 

Sickness Absence

Ø Major Financial Systems, (Debtors, Pensions, Treasury 

Management)

Ø Social Services – Direct Payments, WCCIS, Contract 

Management, Adoption & Foster Carer Payments 

Ø Performance Indicators, Purchasing Cards

Ø Capital Projects - 21st Century Schools, Highways

Ø Various Services- Parking, Legal Services, Street 

Lighting, 

Ø Fraud & Irregularity

12

T
udalen 18



Our Reports – The Opinion

Recommendations – Categorised as High, Medium or Low according 

to criteria

13

T
udalen 19



Reports that you will receive from 

Internal Audit 

Ø Summary of finalised audit assignments

Ø Performance Reports

Ø Head of Internal Audit Annual Report

Ø Draft Annual Audit Plan

14

T
udalen 20



How we want to be regarded
Ø Professional 

Ø Approachable

Ø Flexible

Ø Independent but Internal to the organisation

Ø Here to help and advise, to assist management & staff 

and councillors - critical friend

Ø We can share best practice based on our knowledge and 

experience over 4 Councils

Ø We report to the organisation

Ø Better for us to work together to identify areas for 

improvement to prevent things going wrong rather 

reacting to things that have already gone wrong
15

T
udalen 21



Key contacts

Gary Evans Audit Manager 01685 725066 
07585 333231 

gary.evans@merthyr.gov.uk 
garyevans@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk 

Merthyr Tydfil 

 

16

 

Name Title Phone number Email address Base 

Mark Thomas Head of Regional Audit 
Service 

01446 709572 cmthomas@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk  Vale 

Lisa Cumpston Group Audit Manager 01443 680762 lisa.j.cumpston@rctcbc.gov.uk 
lcumpston@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk  

Porth, RCT 

Andrew Hopkins Principal Auditor 01443 680307 andrew.jm.hopkins@rctcbc.gov.uk  Porth, RCT 

Louise Jones Senior Auditor 01443 680759 sarah-louise.jones@rctcbc.gov.uk  Porth, RCT 

Tim Griffiths Senior Auditor 01443 680772 timothy.griffiths@rctcbc.gov.uk  Porth, RCT 

Joanna Huxtable Auditor 01443 680340 joanna.c.huxtable@rctcbc.gov.uk  Porth, RCT 

Huw Griffiths Auditor 01443 680308 huw.griffiths@rctcbc.gov.uk  Porth, RCT 

Joan Davies Audit Client Manager 01446 
709794 

01656 
754904 

jdavies@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk  Vale 

 

T
udalen 22



17

Thank you / Diolch

Questions

T
udalen 23



T
udalen w

ag



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20

AUDIT COMMITTEE

5th November 2019 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE & DIGITAL SERVICES

INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE 
2019/20

Author: Mark Thomas (Head of Regional Internal Audit Service)           

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report provides the performance information in respect of the 
Internal Audit Service between 1st April 2019 and 18th October 2019. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members:

2.1 Review the information contained within the report and identify whether 
there are any areas where specific issues are of concern.

2.2 Consider what comments and recommendations, if any, they wish to 
make.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To help ensure that Audit Committee monitors the performance of the 
Council’s Internal Audit Service, in accordance with its Terms of 
Reference.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 The Audit Committee Terms of Reference (Point J) requires it ‘To 
receive reports on the performance of the Internal Audit Service 
throughout the year particularly in relation to matters of financial probity 
and corporate governance’.

4.2 In line with this requirement Appendix 1 sets out the Internal Audit Plan 
for 2019/20 and includes the status of each audit, the quarter in which 

Tudalen 25

Agendwm 5



the audit is/was planned to commence and incorporates the detailed 
performance information for each audit.

4.3 The Internal Audit Plan currently includes 69 individual audit 
assignments and, as at 18th October 2019, 40% of the Plan had been 
completed to report stage. The detailed breakdown of the status of 
each review is provided in Appendix 1 and is summarised as follows:

Status No. Of 
Audits

Final Reports Issued 13

Draft Reports Issued 14

Fieldwork Complete 0

Audits In Progress 7

Audits Not Yet Started ('Planned') 35

Total: 69

4.4 Appendix 2 provides a summary of the status of all recommendations 
made by the Internal Audit Service, grouped under the relevant service 
of the Council. 

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

5.1     There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the 
           recommendations set out in the report. 

6. CONSULTATION 

6.1 There are no consultation implications as a result of the 
recommendations set out in the report. 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

7.1    There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations 
          set out in the report. 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

8.1 The provision of regular information in respect of the Council’s Internal 
Audit Service supports the Council in demonstrating compliance with 
the Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018.

8.2 Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 of the 2018 Regulations directs 
that: “A relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system 

Tudalen 26



of internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal 
control.”

9. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT

THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES 
9.1 The work of Internal Audit aims to support the delivery of the priorities 

contained within the Council’s Corporate Plan – The Way Ahead, in 
particular ‘Living Within Our Means’ through ensuring that appropriate 
internal controls are in place to effectively manage resources. 

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT
9.2 The Sustainable Development Principles, in particular Prevention, can 

be applied to the systematic reviews undertaken in order to provide 
assurance that risks to the achievement of objectives are being 
managed.

10. CONCLUSION

10.1 Monitoring the performance of Internal Audit is a key responsibility for 
Audit Committee. This report provides Audit Committee with detailed 
information with which the performance of the Service can be reviewed 
and scrutinised.

Other Information:-

Relevant Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable.

Contact Officers –Mark Thomas 

Tudalen 27



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AS AMENDED BY

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT COMMITTEE

5th November 2019 

INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE 2019/20

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & DIGITAL SERVICES 

Author: 
             Mark Thomas (Head of Regional  Internal Audit Service)           

Item: 5

Background Papers

None.

Officer to contact: Mark Thomas 

Tudalen 28



Appendix 1 - Monitoring the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

&
 is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t 

re
po

rt

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

is
su

in
g 

fin
al

 r
ep

or
t

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

HUMAN RESOURCES

SICKNESS ABSENCE – SCHOOLS High QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

PURCHASE CARDS – NON SCHOOLS 
SPEND Medium QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

FINANCE & DIGITAL SERVICES

ADMINISTRATION OF TRUST FUNDS Low QTR 3 In 
Progress 

07/10/201
9 0 0 0

DEBTORS High QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

PENSIONS High QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

GENERAL LEDGER Low QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

DIGITALISATION High QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

BUSINESS SUPPORT UNIT High QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

VALUE FOR MONEY High QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

T
udalen 29



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

&
 is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t 

re
po

rt

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

is
su

in
g 

fin
al

 r
ep

or
t

TREASURY MANAGEMENT Medium QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

CORPORATE ESTATES

21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS – CAPITAL 
PROJECT C/F High QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

LEGAL SERVICES

LEGAL SERVICES Medium QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

ADULT SERVICES

DIRECT PAYMENTS C/F High QTR 1 Draft 
Report 

01/05/201
9

15/08/201
9

05/09/201
9 21 0 0

BROKER SERVICE C/F High QTR 1 Draft 
Report

24/06/201
9

09/08/201
9

15/08/201
9 6 0 0

WCCIS High QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

THE REVIEW TEAM C/F Medium QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

FAIRER CHARGING High QTR 2 In 
Progress

09/08/201
9 0 0 0

CHILDREN’S SERVICES

T
udalen 30



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

&
 is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t 

re
po

rt

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

is
su

in
g 

fin
al

 r
ep

or
t

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT – 
PLACEMENTS C/F High QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

ADOPTION SUPPORT & FOSTER CARER 
PAYMENTS – FOLLOW UP High QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

PUBLIC HEALTH & COMMUNITY SERVICES  

LLWYDCOED CREMATORIUM Low QTR 3 In 
Progress

18/10/201
9 0 0 0

ENGAGEMENT, INTERVENTION & 
PREVENTION C/F High QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE C/F Medium QTR 1 Final  
Report 

08/05/201
9

14/06/201
9

01/07/201
9 17 18/07/201

9 17 25/07/201
9 7

REGISTRATION SERVICES Low QTR 2 In 
Progress 

24/09/201
9 0 0 0

LEISURE SERVICES - CASH 
COLLECTION & BANKING Medium QTR 2 Draft 

Report
01/07/201

9
02/09/201

9
27/09/201

8 25 0 0

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES 

EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT SERVICES 

EARLY YEARS PROVISION C/F High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

ATTENDANCE & WELLBEING SERVICE 

ATTENDANCE : REFERRALS & 
INTERVENTION High QTR 3 In 

Progress
30/09/201

9 0 0 0

T
udalen 31



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

&
 is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t 

re
po

rt

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

is
su

in
g 

fin
al

 r
ep

or
t

EXCLUSIONS High QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

S.E.N. SCHOOLS

YSGOL HEN FELIN High QTR 2 Draft 
Issued

08/07/201
9

26/07/201
9

06/08/201
9 11 0 0

MAESGWYN SPECIAL SCHOOL High QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

PRIMARY SCHOOLS

PENRHIWCEIBER PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Final  
Report 

20/05/201
9

29/05/201
9

14/06/201
9 16 05/09/201

9 83 10/09/201
9 5

PENYGAWSI PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 2 Draft 
Report

25/09/201
9

11/10/201
9

16/10/201
9 5 0 0

PERTHCELYN COMMUNITY PRIMARY Medium QTR 3 In 
Progress

18/10/201
9 0 0 0

PONTYGWAITH PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Draft 
Issued

09/10/201
9

14/10/201
9

18/10/201
9 4 0 0

RHIGOS PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Final 
Issued

05/06/201
9

07/06/201
9

11/07/201
9 34 17/07/201

9 6 18/07/201
9 1

TON PENTRE PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Final 
Issued

17/06/201
9

20/06/201
9

11/07/201
9 21 09/09/201

9 60 09/09/201
9 0

TONYSGUBORIAU PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Final 
Issued

20/05/201
9

04/06/201
9

01/07/201
9 27 05/07/201

9 4 08/07/201
9 3

TREALAW PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Planned 0 0  0

T
udalen 32



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

&
 is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t 

re
po

rt

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

is
su

in
g 

fin
al

 r
ep

or
t

WILLIAMSTOWN PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Draft 
Issued

01/10/201
9

03/10/201
9

18/10/201
9 15 0  0

YGG ABERCYNON Medium QTR 3 Draft 
Issued

02/10/201
9

11/10/201
9

17/10/201
9 6  0  0

YGG ABERDAR Medium QTR 3 Planned   0  0  0

CRAIG YR HESG PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Planned   0  0  0

LLANHARAN PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 2 Draft 
Issued

17/09/201
9

23/09/201
9

30/09/201
9 7  0  0

MAERDY COMMUNITY PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 2 Draft 

Issued
17/09/201

9
18/09/201

9
30/09/201

9 12 0 0

MAES Y COED PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

PENGEULAN PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

PENYRENGLYN COMMUNITY PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

PONTYCLUN PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Draft 
Issued

24/09/201
9

02/10/201
9

15/10/201
9 13 0 0

YNYSHIR PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

YGG BODRINGALLT Medium QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

YGG TONYREFAIL Medium QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

T
udalen 33



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

&
 is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t 

re
po

rt

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

is
su

in
g 

fin
al

 r
ep

or
t

PRIMARY SCHOOL SELF ASSESSMENT 
REPORT 19/20 Medium QTR 4 Planned  0  0  0

MIDDLE SCHOOLS 

YSGOL LLANHARI FOLLOW UP C/F High QTR 1 Draft 
Issued

10/06/201
9

18/06/201
9

29/07/201
9 41 0 0

TONYREFAIL COMMUNITY SCHOOL High QTR 1 Final 
Issued

17/06/201
9

01/07/201
9

07/08/201
9 37 07/10/201

9 61 09/10/201
9 2

SECONDARY SCHOOLS 

Y PANT COMPREHENSIVE FOLLOW UP High QTR 1 Final 
Issued

24/06/201
9

01/07/201
9

17/07/201
9 16 10/09/201

9 55 17/09/201
9 7

HAWTHORN HIGH SCHOOL FOLLOW UP High QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

SCHOOLS & COMMUNITY

EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT GRANT High QTR 2 Final 
Issued

01/09/201
9

30/09/201
9

04/10/201
9 4 10/10/201

9 6 10/10/201
9 0

POST 16 GRANT High QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

POST 16 PLANNING AND FUNDING 
2019/20 High QTR 3 Planned 0 0 0

PUPIL DEPRIVATION GRANT High QTR 2 Final 
Issued

01/09/201
9

30/09/201
9

04/10/201
9 4 10/10/201

9 6 10/10/201
9 0

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES

T
udalen 34



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

&
 is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t 

re
po

rt

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

is
su

in
g 

fin
al

 r
ep

or
t

HIGHWAYS & STREETCARE

HIGHWAYS - CAPITAL PROGRAMME C/F High QTR 1 Final 
Issued

15/04/201
9

01/07/201
9

11/07/201
9 10 25/07/201

9 14 05/08/201
9 11

STREET LIGHTING Medium QTR 2 In 
Progress

23/09/201
9 0 0 0

MANAGEMENT OF FUEL - PARKS High QTR 1 Final 
Issued 

17/04/201
9

07/05/201
9

13/05/201
9 6 15/05/201

9 2 24/05/201
9 9

ENFORCEMENT Medium QTR 2 Draft 
Issued

08/08/201
9

10/09/201
9

04/10/201
9 24 0 0

PARKING SERVICES Medium QTR 1 Final 
Issued

24/06/201
9

01/07/201
9

14/08/201
9 44 09/09/201

9 26 10/09/201
9 1

WASTE SERVICES C/F High QTR 1 Draft 
Issued

10/06/201
9

20/09/201
9

15/10/201
9 25 0 0

PROSPERITY & DEVELOPMENT

BUILDING CONTROL Medium QTR 4 Planned 0 0 0

WHOLE AUTHORITY ARRANGEMENTS

WHOLE AUTHORITY ARRANGEMENTS

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS High QTR 1 Final 
Issued

13/05/201
9

19/06/201
9

05/07/201
9 16 29/07/201

9 24 05/08/201
9 7

ANTI-FRAUD, BRIBERY & CORRUPTION High QTR 4 Planned

T
udalen 35



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

&
 is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t 

re
po

rt

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

is
su

in
g 

fin
al

 r
ep

or
t

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT C/F Medium QTR 4 Planned

T
udalen 36



Appendix 2 - The Status of Recommendations

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

Number of 
HIGH Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future12

12 0 0
Number of 

MEDIUM Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future82

79 0 3
Number of LOW 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future67

65 0 2

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES

Number of 
HIGH Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future23

22 0 1
Number of 

MEDIUM Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future165

154 0 11
Number of LOW 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future98

95 0 3

CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

Number of 
HIGH Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future33

33 0 0
Number of 

MEDIUM Recs STATUS

100 Implemented Overdue / Target Date in the 

Tudalen 37



Outstanding Future

99 0 1
Number of LOW 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future47

47 0 0

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES

Number of 
HIGH Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future339

332 0 7
Number of 

MEDIUM Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future885

872 0 13
Number of LOW 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future647

644 0 3

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES

Number of 
HIGH Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future0

0 0 0
Number of 

MEDIUM Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future5

5 0 0
Number of LOW 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future2

2 0 0

WHOLE AUTHORITY ARRANGEMENTS

Number of 
HIGH Recs STATUS

Tudalen 38



Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future9

9 0 0
Number of 

MEDIUM Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future11

10 0 1
Number of LOW 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / 
Outstanding

Target Date in the 
Future0

0 0 0

Tudalen 39



Tudalen wag



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20

AUDIT COMMITTEE

5th November 2019
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE & DIGITAL SERVICES FINALISED AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS

Author: Mark Thomas (Head of Regional Internal Audit Service) 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report provides Members with a summary of audit assignments completed 
between 1st September 2019 and 18th October 2019.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members:

2.1 Seek clarity and explanation where there are areas of concern.

2.2 Identify further action to be taken where deemed necessary.

3. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To help ensure that Audit Committee discharges its responsibilities in respect 
of reviewing the overall control environment in place across the Council.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 The Audit Committee Terms of Reference (Point C) requires it to ‘Review, 
scrutinise and issue reports and recommendations on the appropriateness of 
the Authority’s risk management, internal control and corporate governance 
arrangements, and providing the opportunity for direct discussion with the 
auditor(s) on these’.

4.2 In line with this requirement Appendix 1 provides a summary of the audit 
assignments completed between 1st September 2019 and 18th October 2019.  
Members will note that the summary provides for each assignment: the 
Introduction, Scope & Objectives, Auditor’s stated opinion and a summary of 

Tudalen 41

Agendwm 6



all recommendations made for each audit review completed to final report 
stage within the stated period.  

4.3 To help ensure Audit Committee effectively discharges the responsibility as 
set out in its Terms of Reference (and replicated at point 4.1 above), Members 
may wish to consider the principles noted below in addition to their own lines 
of enquiry: 

 Are the conclusions made by Internal Audit reasonable / backed up by the 
findings reported?
 

 Are the recommendations made by Internal Audit likely to support the 
necessary improvement in internal control? 

4.4   Members will note that 5 audit assignments have been finalised in the period  
        and are set out in Table 1 below.

Table 1 – finalised audit assignments

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES 
 PENRHIWCEIBER PRIMARY SCHOOL 2019/20
 TON PENTRE JUNIOR SCHOOL 2019/20
 TONYREFAIL COMMUNITY SCHOOL 2019/20
 Y PANT FOLLOW UP PRIMARY SCHOOL 2019/20

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES  
 PARKING SERVICES 2019/20  

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the 
recommendations set out in the report. 

6. CONSULTATION 

6.1 There are no consultation implications as a result of the recommendations set 
out in the report. 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

7.1 There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations set out 
in the report. 

Tudalen 42



8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

8.1 The provision of regular information in respect of the Council’s Internal Audit 
Service supports the Council in demonstrating compliance with the Accounts 
and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018.

8.2 Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 of the 2018 Regulations directs that: “A 
relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit 
of its accounting records and of its system of internal control.”

9. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-
BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT

THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES 
9.1 The work of Internal Audit aims to support the delivery of the priorities contained 

within the Council’s Corporate Plan – The Way Ahead, in particular ‘Living 
Within Our Means’ through ensuring that appropriate internal controls are in 
place to effectively manage resources. 

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT
9.2 The Sustainable Development Principles, in particular Prevention, can be 

applied to the systematic reviews undertaken in order to provide assurance that 
risks to the achievement of objectives are being managed.

10. CONCLUSION

10.1 The regular provision of all summarised audit assignments to Audit Committee 
throughout the year is aimed at assisting Members in evaluating the 
effectiveness of Internal Audit work across all Council systems and services.

10.2 In doing so, it informs Members knowledge of the overall control environment of 
the Council.

Other Information:-
Relevant Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable.
Contact Officers –Mark Thomas 

Tudalen 43



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AS AMENDED BY

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT COMMITTEE

5th November 2019

FINALISED AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & DIGITAL SERVICES
Author: Mark Thomas (Head of Regional Internal Audit Service)

Item: 6

Background Papers

None.

Officer to contact: Mark Thomas 

Tudalen 44



Appendix 1 - Summary of audit assignments completed between 1st September 2019 and 18th October 2019

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES

AUDIT NAME: PENRHIWCEIBER PRIMARY SCHOOL

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 10/09/2019

INTRODUCTION
The self-evaluation process is designed to evaluate the effectiveness of a school’s financial and governance arrangements.  The process requires primary 
schools to complete a self-evaluation checklist against expected controls.
Penrhiwceiber Primary School was last subject to an Internal Audit Review in November 2014, and this is the third cyclical visit made to the school to examine 
progress made under the self-evaluation process.
The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body during the Autumn Term meeting. 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
The checklist for non-chequebook primary schools comprises of 101 standards that need to be reviewed. Audit testing was carried out on a sample of 
standards applicable to the School, using transactions processed during financial year 2017/18 and 2018/19.
The objectives of the review were:

 To review the Governance arrangements in place at the school.
 To ensure compliance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, this requires Governing Bodies to have arrangements for exercising their functions 

with a view to Safeguarding.
 To ensure that the School Private Fund is appropriately administered in accordance with the requirements of the 2018 School Private Fund 

Regulations.
 To ensure that the Purchase Card is being used in accordance with the guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service.
 To ensure that all school meals income is identified, received and collected in accordance with Council Policy, arrears regularly reported and followed 

up and free meals only provided where entitlement has been confirmed by the Council.
 To ensure that all Formula Funding allocations are based on up to date and correct numbers of registered pupils, and an audit trail is maintained to 

T
udalen 45



ensure accountability and transparency of the numbers submitted.
 To ensure that the opportunities for unauthorised use of the school's I.T equipment are restricted, that hardware and software is adequately protected 

and that the School and Governing Body are appropriately registered under the Data Protection Act 2018.

AUDIT OPINION
Safeguarding & Educational Visits
The control environment in respect of Safeguarding and Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 
Testing identified that all staff received the appropriate clearances before commencing duties in their posts. The School has a Safeguarding Policy which is 
reviewed annually, and there was documentary evidence at the School to confirm that all members of staff have received a copy of the Policy and have read 
and understood it.   While evidence was available to demonstrate that 3 members of staff have received Level 3 Training, the school were unable to 
demonstrate that the remaining staff members have been trained in accordance with the Level 1 requirements.
The School make use of the EVOLVE system to record details of all off-site visits, however, care should be taken to ensure that all trips and activities are 
entered onto EVOLVE and submitted for approval within the correct timescales as this had not been done for the latest 3 Manor Adventure Trips attended.  It 
was also noted that there is one member of staff recorded on Vision who is no longer employed at the School and the appropriate arrangements have yet to 
be made for this person to be removed. 
Governance 
The control environment in respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
The roles and responsibilities of the Governing Body and its sub committees have been set out in writing and membership is reviewed annually. A Register 
of Business Interests is in place at the School and is updated annually. There are currently no Governor vacancies.  It was noted that the Headteacher has 
not been formally delegated a limit for purchases and virements and this report recommends that the Governing Body confirm a scheme of delegation, to 
formally record the Headteacher's financial limits for expenditure and budget virements.
School Private Fund 
The control environment in respect of the School Private Fund is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
A Management Committee has been established although the positions held do not reflect the actual duties undertaken by staff at the School.  
A Record of Daily Income is used to record all income received and a ledger maintained of all income and expenditure transactions.  This was found to be up 
to date at the time of the review and the account reconciled to the bank statements monthly, with appropriate evidence retained.  It was however noted that 
on 6 occasions during the period examined small amounts of cash had been withheld from income collected to provide refunds to parents.  While this was 
clearly documented in the records it is not permitted by the School Private Fund Regulations.  3 occasions were also noted totalling £18.76 where the fund 
was used to purchase items that would have been more appropriately processed through the School Budget.
Purchase Card
The control environment in respect of the Purchase Card is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
There is 1 Purchase Card at the School and a review of the expenditure revealed that there is a sufficient audit trail in respect of evidence to support card 

T
udalen 46



transactions during the sample period. It was however identified that that the Transaction Log is updated with items of expenditure upon receipt of the electronic 
Bank Statement. This report recommends that the log is updated as and when purchase are made,  both to comply with the guidance issued by the 
Procurement Service and to assist with the monthly reconciliation.
Data Security & Inventory 
The control environment in respect of Data Security & Inventory is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
The school is registered with the Information Commissioner and data is retained securely and backed up regularly.  While ICT equipment is asset registered 
the Inventory was not up to date at the time of the review, and had not been updated for a number of years. This report recommends that a review of the 
School's assets is undertaken with an annual review thereafter.  It was also identified that a small stock of school uniform items is held at the school but no 
stock records are maintained.  
School Meals
The control environment in respect of School Meals is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report.
Dinner money is updated to SIMS, banked regularly and the School manage their arrears in line with the Catering Finance School Meal Protocol. Testing 
identified that free school meals are only provided to pupils for whom eligibility has been confirmed and retained, and the School meals income records are 
regularly reviewed by an independent member of staff to ensure that they are complete, accurate and agree with the deposits made. 
Implementation of the recommendations contained within this report will provide the Headteacher with the opportunity to enhance the control environment 
further.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

5.1.1

High

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 
governing bodies and proprietors of independent Schools under the 
Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states:

'Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 
with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 
knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their responsibilities 
for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date by refresher 
training'.

The current requirements for safeguarding training are that Level 1 & 2 
needs to be renewed every 3 years and facilitated by RCT with Level 3 

The Headteacher should ensure that 
Safeguarding training is renewed as and when 
required for all members of staff. 

The School should develop a central training 
record, to demonstrate the date and level of 
safeguarding training alongside individual 
staff names.

This could be incorporated into the Child 
Protection Policy to allow the assessment of 
training requirements to coincide with the 

Implemented 

T
udalen 47



being trained every 2 years (in house Level 1 refresher training can also 
be delivered annually by Level 3 trained staff).

While evidence was available to demonstrate that 3 members of staff 
have undertaken Level 3 training, the school were unable to 
demonstrate that the remaining staff members have been trained in 
accordance with the Level 1 requirements. 

(It is acknowledged that the Headteacher has since made arrangements 
for all staff to undertake appropriate Level 1 training during June 2019).                           

Policy’s annual review.  

5.1.2

Low

The ‘Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits’ states 
that residential visits/adventure activities must be ‘planned and 
approved using the EVOLVE system at least 28 days before visit’.

It was noted that for each trip to Manor Adventure in 2017, 2018 and 
2019, authorisation from the LEA had not been received within the 
correct timescales as details of the trips had not been submitted by the 
School within the correct timescales:  

• Date of trip: 27.03.17
• Created on EVOLVE: 23.03.17

• Date of trip: 26.03.18
• Created on EVOLVE: 8.03.18

• Date of trip: 08.04.19
• Created on EVOLVE: 18.03.19

Care should be taken to ensure that all trips / 
activities are entered onto EVOLVE within the 
correct time-scales, and are authorised in the 
correct manner.

Implemented T
udalen 48



5.1.3

Low

Comparison of the School's list of staff to the Vision system identified 1 
member of staff on Vision but not on the School’s list (038409). 

It was established that this member of staff no longer work at the School.

The Headteacher should ensure that all staff 
changes are notified to Human Resources in 
a timely manner to allow the appropriate 
changes to be made to Vision. 

Implemented 

5.2.1

Medium

Discussion at the School revealed that the Headteacher has not been 
formally delegated a limit for purchases and virements. 

The Governing Body should confirm a scheme 
of delegation, to formally record the 
Headteacher's financial limits for expenditure 
and budget virements. The agreed limits 
should be minuted and be incorporated into 
the School's Financial Procedures document. 

31 December 2019

5.2.2

Medium

All statutory policies and documents are in place at the School. 

However, it was not evident within the Governing Body minutes that all 
policies had been reviewed by the Governing Body within the last 3 
years (Appendix 1).

The policies identified should be reviewed as 
soon as possible. Following review, the 
policies should be presented to the Governing 
Body for review and formal ratification (and 
this should be minuted). 

A rolling review programme of all Policies 
could be introduced to ensure that all policies 
are up to date and reflect the current practices 
at the School. 

Implemented 

5.3.1

Medium

Point 2.2 of the School Private Fund Regulations states:

"The School Private Fund shall be managed by a committee formed from 
school staff".

Although a Management Committee has been established, the positions 
held do not relate to the actual duties undertaken. The post of Fund 
Secretary is currently occupied by the Chair of Governors who has no 

Arrangements should be made to ensure that 
the positions held on the Management 
Committee are in accordance with the School 
Private Fund Regulations and relate to the 
actual duties undertaken.

31 December 2019

T
udalen 49



involvement in the daily running of the fund, and the post of Treasurer is 
currently occupied by the former School Clerk who retired 18 months 
previously.

5.3.2

Medium

Section 4.2 of the School Private Fund Regulations states:

‘All monies collected must be banked intact, in order that income can be 
traced and reconciled to bankings.’

Examination of the fund income for the current academic year identified 
6 occasions where cash was withheld from income collected to provide 
refunds to parents.  While it is acknowledged that a clear record of these 
refunds was available at the School, this is not in accordance with the 
School Private Fund Regulations. 

All income received should be banked intact 
to ensure that it can be traced and reconciled 
to bankings.

Alternative arrangements should be made in 
respect making refunds to parents in future, 
i.e. all payments made by cheque or financed 
from a cash float.

Implemented 

5.3.3

Medium

A review of the School Private Fund expenditure for the current 
academic year identified the following items of expenditure that would 
be more appropriately purchased through the budget account: 

• 2.10.18 - £6.36 - Cooking resources for School
• 09.1.19 - £3.36 - Biscuits for meeting
• 08.03.19 - £9.04 - Resources for School

The Private Fund should not be used to 
administer payments which fall outside of the 
scope, with the school budget a more 
appropriate account to be used. 

Implemented 

5.4.1

Medium

Point 6.1 of the Cardholder Manual for Schools states:

'Each Purchasing Card transaction should be recorded on your 
transaction log as soon as the transaction is complete to ensure that no 
information is omitted.'

The Transaction Log is currently updated following receipt of the on-line 

In line with the Cardholder Manual, the 
transaction log should be updated as and 
when a Purchase Card payment is made, 
which will enable the transactions listed on the 
log to be reconciled to the Barclays system 
monthly.

Implemented 

T
udalen 50



Bank Statements, and not as and when a purchase is made.

5.5.1

Medium

There is no up to date Inventory available at the School. A full inventory review should be undertaken 
and all new equipment recorded as soon as 
possible. Thereafter an annual review should 
be carried out to ensure that the record is 
accurate and up-to-date. 

31 December 2019

5.5.2

Low

The School currently hold a small stock of uniform items for purchase by 
parents if required.  This review identified that no record of the uniform 
stock or balance in hand is maintained. 

An up to date record of all uniform stock items 
should be maintained and care should be 
taken to ensure that all receipts and issues are 
updated as and when they occur.

A periodic comparison between the stock 
record and the stock in hand should also be 
undertaken to ensure that the records match.

31 December 2019

T
udalen 51



AUDIT NAME: TON PENTRE JUNIOR SCHOOL

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 09/09/2019

INTRODUCTION
The self-evaluation process is designed to evaluate the effectiveness of a school’s financial and governance arrangements. The process requires primary 
schools to complete a self-evaluation checklist against expected controls.
Ton Pentre Juniors was last subject to an Internal Audit Review in November 2014 and this is the third cyclical visit made to the school to examine progress 
made under the self-evaluation process.
The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the full Governing Body at their Autumn Term 2019 meeting.

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
The checklist for non-chequebook primaries comprises of 101 standards that need to be reviewed. Audit testing was carried out on a sample of standards 
applicable to the School, using transactions processed during financial year 2018/19 and 2019/20.
The objectives of the review are:  

 To review the governance arrangements in place at the School.
 To ensure compliance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, this requires Governing Bodies to have arrangements for exercising their functions 

with a view to Safeguarding.  
 To ensure that the School Private Fund is appropriately administered in accordance with the requirements of the 2018 School Private Fund 

Regulations.   
 To ensure that the Purchase Card is being used in accordance with the guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service.  
 To ensure that all School meals income is identified, received and collected in accordance with Council Policy, arrears regularly reported and followed 

up and free meals only provided where entitlement has been confirmed by the Council.  
 To ensure that all orders raised by the School are appropriate and reflected in the budget, are correctly authorised and comply with Financial 

Regulations. 
 To ensure that all Formula Funding allocations are based on up to date and correct numbers of registered pupils, and an audit trail is maintained to 

ensure accountability and transparency of the numbers submitted.
 To ensure that the opportunities for unauthorised use of the School's IT equipment are restricted, that computer hardware and software is adequately 

protected and that the School and Governing Body are appropriately registered under the Data Protection Act 2018.

AUDIT OPINION
Governance 
The control environment is respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.

T
udalen 52



All statutory policies and documents were present at the time of the audit. The Headteacher has a rolling review programme in place to ensure that all policies 
and documents are reviewed and subsequently ratified by the Governing Body in accordance with prescribed timescales. Electronic copies of all Policy 
Documents are also available in addition to the copies which have been signed by the Chair of Governors and Headteacher. 
In accordance with statutory requirements committee meeting minutes were present at the School and all those reviewed had been signed/initialled by the 
Chair of Governors. 
A Register of Business Interests is in place at the School however one declaration was not present at the time of audit. It was later reported that it has been 
found by the Headteacher and the school now has a complete record. There are currently 2 vacancies on the Governing Body which the School are trying to 
fill.  
Safeguarding & Educational Visits 
The control environment in respect of Safeguarding & Educational Visits is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within 
this report.   
The School has a Child Protection Policy in place which was last reviewed and presented to the Governing Body in October 2018. This was distributed to all 
staff and a record maintained of all staff signatures to confirm that they have received, read and understood the Policy.     
Level 1 Safeguarding training was found to be up to date in respect of all current staff, with further updated training scheduled for 2nd September 2019. There 
are currently 6 members of staff at the school who have received Level 3 training and certificates were present on the Headteacher’s Safeguarding File in 
respect of all training received.  
Internal Audit is able to provide assurance that all staff at the school received a DBS clearance prior to commencing in post and the School’s list of current 
staff agreed to Vision. A record of supply staff and corresponding DBS details was also maintained at the school.
The School use the Evolve system to document and authorise all planned trips. All trips sampled had been submitted for approval within the required 
timescales.
School Private Fund
The control environment in respect of the School Private Fund is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 
The Treasurer maintains detailed records with an adequate audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions. An electronic ledger is maintained to record 
both income and expenditure transactions and was found to be up to date. 
All expenditure within the sample period appeared was for the benefit of the pupils and was adequately supported with receipts / vouchers.  
A review of the latest annual statement revealed that it was accurately completed and was submitted to Education Finance by the required deadline included 
in the Private Fund Regulations. 
Purchase Card
The control environment in respect of the Purchase Card is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 
The school has two Purchase Cards in operation.  All purchases reviewed during the sample period were supported with documentation i.e. receipts, invoices, 
online orders, and all transactions had been ‘reviewed’ and ‘authorised’ on the Barclaycard system. Whilst the log has been divided into monthly periods, it 
was found that there was no way of identifying which card was used for each transaction hence the process of reconciliation is more difficult at the end of 

T
udalen 53



each billing period. Transactions relating to each of the School’s two Purchase Cards are also recorded on the same log. It is recommended that separate 
Transaction Logs are maintained for each card or another means of identifying which transactions relate to which purchase card. This can then be used as 
part of the reconciliation process to the Barclaycard system.
The Purchase Card is not used by any other member of staff apart from the Headteacher and School Clerk; therefore no signing in and out log is in operation.  
School Meals 
The control environment in respect of the School Meals system is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 
School meals income is recorded directly onto SIMS daily with meal numbers provided daily to Catering staff. Income is banked regularly and catering returns 
submitted in accordance with guidelines. 
The School send both text reminders and letters to parents in respect of dinner money arrears on a weekly basis and arrears at the school are low. Catering 
Finance are provided with a ½ termly report as required. At the time of the visit there were two pupils with arrears in excess of the 2 week limit, and evidence 
of these being followed up with recovery letters present.  
Purchasing 
The control environment in respect of Purchasing is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report.
The majority of purchases are made by the school using the Purchase Card.
Formula Funding
The control environment in respect of Formula Funding is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 
Pupil numbers were reviewed and no discrepancies were noted.
Implementation of the recommendations contained within this report will enhance the control environment further.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

5.1.1

Low

The membership of governing bodies is set out in chapter 3 of the 
Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005. This 
specifies that the composition of the Governing Body should consist of 
either 13 or 17 Governors. 
It was confirmed in the Instrument of Government that the School’s 
Governing Body should consist of 13 members.

Examination of the current Governing Body structure revealed that there 
are currently only 11 Governors in post at this time. 

The School should continue to endeavour to 
fill the Governor vacancies as soon as 
possible. 

31 October 2019

T
udalen 54



5.2.1

Low

A transaction log is in place at the School and was found to be up to 
date with details of the latest transaction in respect of both purchase 
cards in operation.
 
Whilst the log has been divided into monthly periods, there was no 
method of identifying which of the purchases were made using each of 
the school’s cards, and the transactions could not be easily separated 
for reconciliation purposes. 

A separate transaction log should be used for 
each of the purchase cards in use. 
If the single log is to continue then some form 
of identifying method needs to be introduced 
to know which card was used for each 
transaction. 

Implemented 

AUDIT NAME: TONYREFAIL COMMUNITY SCHOOL

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 09/10/2019

INTRODUCTION
Tonyrefail Community School is a new 3 - 18 mixed English Middle School, created following the amalgamation of Tonyrefail School and Tonyrefail Primary 
School.  The School opened on 1st September 2018 and there are 1414 pupils on roll, including 227 in the sixth form. 
The proportion of pupils entitled to free school meals currently stands at 24.6%, which is higher than the national average of 16.4%.  
The total budget for the School for 2019/20 is in excess of £6.2m.
As Tonyrefail Community School is a newly created School, it has not yet been subject to a routine audit visit in its current Middle School status.

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
All financial systems in operation at the school were considered and an assessment carried out in consultation with the Headteacher and Chair of Governors 
to identify those areas representing the highest risk to the school, and therefore necessitating review. 
In accordance with Internal Audit Plan for financial year 2019/20 agreed by Audit Committee, and at the request of the School, all financial systems in operation 
at the school were considered and an assessment carried out in consultation with the Headteacher and Chair of Governors to identify those areas representing 
the highest risk to the school, and therefore necessitating review.
On the basis of this assessment, audit work was carried out on the following areas of administration: -

 Governance
 Safeguarding
 Collections & Deposits / School Meals (Primary Department) 
 Purchasing
 Purchase Card
 Petty Cash

T
udalen 55



AUDIT OPINION
Safeguarding & Educational Visits
The control environment in respect of Safeguarding & Educational Visits is considered to be insufficient and requires improvement.
The School has a Child Protection Policy in place which was last reviewed and presented to the Governing Body in December 2018.  However, no signed 
copy was available at the School and no evidence located to indicate that the Policy had been distributed to all staff. The School is therefore unable to 
demonstrate that each member of staff has received, read and understood the Policy, which is a requirement of the Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board.
Level 1 Safeguarding training was provided to the whole School in September 2018.  However a review of the records maintained to support the training 
identified that these are incomplete.  Of the 149 members of staff, 74 had signed to confirm attendance (as per the requirements of the Cwm Taf Safeguarding 
Board), 50 had ticked to confirm attendance, and no evidence could be located in respect of the remaining 25.  
Whilst Level 3 training certificates were present in respect of 3 members of staff, this did not include the Headteacher or Designated Safeguarding Officer for 
the School, whose Level 3 training has expired. This report recommends that an electronic training record is introduced to record all staff names, training 
dates, level of training acquired together with expiry dates.  This will allow for staff training requirements to be reviewed annually at the same time as the 
Safeguarding Policy.
A record is held at the School of staff who have been DBS checked, and Internal Audit can provide assurance that all staff received DBS clearance prior to 
commencing in post. It was however noted that this list is incomplete and does not include the DBS details of 11 casual members of staff.
The School use the EVOLVE system to document School trips. However a review of a sample of trips since September 2018 identified 21 trips which had not 
been formally authorised on EVOLVE in accordance with the Planning and Approval Procedures, including ‘Ski 2019’ which took place during February 2019.   
This is deemed as an adventurous activity and as such should have been planned and approved on EVOLVE at least 28 days before taking place. 
Governance
The control environment in respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
The roles and responsibilities of the Governing Body and its sub committees have been set out in writing.  The Governing Body and its sub committees have 
the requisite number of members and quorate levels for meetings are achieved.  All minutes examined had been appropriately signed and retained at the 
School.
A Register of Business Interests is in place at the School with all current declarations present at the time of the audit.   It was however noted that no Governor 
attendance sheets are currently maintained for Governing Body sub committee meetings that are not clerked by the School’s Governor Support Officer.
Staff involved in the financial decision making process have these responsibilities delegated in their job descriptions and regular budgetary information from 
SIMS is provided to the Governing Body.  However, the financial limits for delegated authority have yet to be agreed and minuted by the Full Governing Body.
Not all statutory policies and documents were in place at the time of the audit. Although it is accepted that there is a rolling review programme in place, this 
report recommends that all statutory policies and documents are reviewed in line with statutory requirements and that following each policy / document review, 
are presented to the Full Governing Body for endorsement with this clearly detailed in the Governing body minutes for transparency.
Collections & Deposits / School Meals (Primary Department)
The control environment in respect of Collections & Deposits / School Meals is considered to be insufficient and requires improvement.

T
udalen 56



There are high levels of School Meals arrears at the School amounting to £12,629.64 at the time of the audit and non-compliance with the Council's School 
Meals Arrears Recovery Protocols.
It was noted that there are 13 pupils listed as being entitled to a Free School Meal at the School despite no authorisation being received to confirm eligibility 
and hence, these pupils may be receiving free school meals, for which they are not entitled, and parents unknowingly accruing dinner money arrears.
Although cash received in the Lower School is collected and passed daily to the Upper School for banking, the handover of cash between the Lower and 
Upper School is not demonstrated in that signatures are not obtained from staff and neither are receipts provided.  Furthermore the cash is currently not 
counted in the Upper School until it is banked on a Friday leaving staff vulnerable to errors and anomalies as the cash is not checked until the end of each 
week.  
Purchasing
The control environment in respect of Purchasing is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 
A large number of purchases are now made using the Purchase Card.  For all orders raised using SIMS there is a process in place in that all purchases are 
authorised by the budget holder prior to committing the School to expenditure.  From a sample or orders examined all had been authorised in accordance 
with this procedure and were raised on SIMS prior to receipt of the goods and invoice.  All delivery notes and invoices showed evidence of being reviewed 
and all payments within the sample were supported with valid VAT invoices.  While cheque signatories examine documentation prior to authorising cheques 
this is currently not evidenced by way of a signature on the corresponding cheque advice slip. 
It was however noted that official orders are being raised on SIMS in respect of payments which should typically be processed via the non-order invoice 
facility, which is an unnecessary duplication of time and effort by staff. 
Purchase Card
The control environment in respect of the Purchase Card is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
The school has one Purchase card. There is a sufficient audit trail in respect of evidence to support expenditure via the card and all purchases reviewed 
during the sample period were supported with documentation i.e. receipts, invoices, online confirmation orders.  However, during the sample period examined, 
7 instances were noted where the card was used to purchase flowers for staff totalling £233.
A Transaction Log is maintained and was up to date at the time of the Audit visit. Although it was evident on the Bank Statements that bank reconciliation is 
being undertaken it was not possible to determine when and by whom as the bank statements had not been signed and dated. Furthermore, there was no 
evidence of a reconciliation between the Bank statements and the Transaction Log, as items on the Transaction Log had not been ticked.
A card sharing log is in place to record instances where the card is used by other members of staff and no instances of card details being stored to online 
accounts were identified.
Petty Cash
The control environment in respect of Petty Cash is considered to be insufficient and requires improvement.
The School Petty Cash account is still operated using the spending limits previously agreed by the former Tonyrefail School Governing Body. Budget holders 
are currently not required to authorise expenditure prior to expenditure being incurred, and during the sample period examined, 4 occasions were noted where 
individual reimbursements have exceeded the set limit of £30.00.

T
udalen 57



Whilst a manual record of petty cash transactions is maintained, SIMS is only updated periodically when the cash in hand balance is low and requires a 
reimbursement cheque, and there is currently no evidence of a regular, independent reconciliation of the account. It is accepted that the account is reviewed 
by the Finance Manager each time a reimbursement is required, but this could not be evidenced as the records at the school are not endorsed with a signature 
or date of the person undertaking the review.
Implementing the recommendations contained within the report will enhance the current levels of control at the School.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

5.1.1

High

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 
governing bodies and proprietors of independent schools under the 
Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states that:

'Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 
with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 
knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their responsibilities 
for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date by refresher 
training'.

Although it was established that Level 1 training was provided to the 
whole school on 3rd September 2018, the School was unable to 
demonstrate that all members of staff were present for the training:

• 74 members of staff had signed to confirm their attendance. 
• 50 members of staff had ticked to confirm their attendance.
• For the remaining 25 staff there was no documentary evidence
             of attendance available. 

It was also noted that Level 3 training for both the Headteacher and 

The Headteacher and Designated 
Safeguarding Officer should undertake Level 
3 Safeguarding training as soon as possible, 
and evidence of the training (i.e. training 
certificate) should be retained at the School.  

In respect of the 25 members of staff 
identified, as a minimum requirement all 
should receive Level 1 training as soon as 
possible. 

Management is reminded that staff should 
sign (not tick) to confirm attendance at any 
training event and a formal record should be 
made each time any member of staff at the 
School undertakes any training. In order to 
assist with this requirement, the School should 
develop an electronic, central training record 
to demonstrate the date and level of 
safeguarding training alongside individual 

Implemented 

T
udalen 58



Designated Safeguarding Officer had expired.  It is however accepted 
that Level 3 training certificates were present at the School for a further 
3 members of staff.  

staff names. 

This could be incorporated into the Child 
Protection Policy to allow the assessment of 
training requirements to coincide with the 
Policy’s annual review. 

5.1.2

High

Point 3.1 of the (Cwm Taf Safeguarding Children Board) Model 
Safeguarding Policy (that should be adopted by schools) states:

'The Designated Senior Person (DSP) for Child Protection will......ensure 
that all staff have signed to say that they have received, read and 
understood the Child Safeguarding Policy.'

No evidence was available at the School to demonstrate that staff have 
received, read, and understood the Child Protection Policy.
  
Additionally, the Child Protection Policy has not been signed by the 
Headteacher, Chair of Governors, the Governor with Designated Child 
Protection responsibility nor the 3 members of staff with designated 
Child Protection responsibility.

Following each annual review of the Child 
Protection Policy, the Designated Senior 
person should ensure that all members of staff 
are provided with a copy of the Policy and sign 
to demonstrate that they have received, read 
and understood the policy.  A copy of this 
should be retained centrally.

The Child Protection Policy should be also 
signed and dated by each designated member 
of staff with Child Protection responsibility, 
including the Chair of Governors and the 
Governor with designated Child Protection 
responsibility.

Implemented

5.1.3

Low

Section 2.21 of the Keeping Learners Safe Guide 'Responsibilities of 
Governing Bodies / Proprietors' states:

‘Governing bodies of maintained schools, governing bodies 
(Corporations) of FE institutions, and proprietors of independent schools 
should ensure that their respective organisations have effective child 
protection policies and procedures in place that are made available to 
parents or carers on request.

Arrangements should be made to make 
parents / carers aware of the existence of the 
Child Protection Policy.

Good practice would be to make the Policy 
available on the School website and / or make 
reference to the Policy within the School 
prospectus.

Implemented 

T
udalen 59



While an up to date Safeguarding Policy is in place at the School, this is 
currently not available on the School website.  Additionally in the 
absence of a School prospectus, parents have not been made aware of 
the existence of this Policy. 

5.1.4

Low

An up to date staff DBS list was obtained from the VISION system and 
agreed to the current list of staff employed at the School.

Whilst Internal Audit is able to provide assurance that all staff at the 
School received a DBS prior to commencing in post, there were 11 
casual members of staff on VISION but not on the School’s list. 

The Headteacher should ensure that the 
School maintains an up to date list / record of 
all staff that work at the school whether 
permanently, casually or temporarily i.e. 
supply teachers, student teachers, volunteers 
etc. This should include their name, DBS 
reference number and the date of check.

The School’s list should be updated in respect 
of the 11 members of staff identified. 

Implemented 

5.1.5

High

The ‘Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits’ states 
that all visits must be approved by the Headteacher or EVC Co-
Ordinator.

The ‘Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits’ also 
states that:

‘Residential visits / adventure activities must be 'planned and approved 
using the Evolve system at least 28 days before visit'. 

From a sample of completed trips since September 2018, 21 trips were 
identified on EVOLVE whereby formal authorisation had not been 
obtained. 

The Headteacher is reminded that under 
Guidance for Educational Visits the Local 
Authority requires 28 days notice to process 
and approve all trips that involve overnight, 
overseas or adventurous activities.    

Care should be taken to ensure that all trips / 
activities are entered onto EVOLVE within the 
correct time-scales, and are authorised in the 
correct manner. 

If there is a training requirement for staff the 
School should contact the Outdoor Education 
Advisor to make the necessary arrangements.

Implemented 

T
udalen 60



The ‘Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits’ states 
that all visits must be approved by the Headteacher or EVC Co-
Ordinator.

The ‘Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits’ also 
states that:

‘Residential visits / adventure activities must be 'planned and approved 
using the Evolve system at least 28 days before visit'. 

From a sample of completed trips since September 2018, 21 trips were 
identified on EVOLVE whereby formal authorisation had not been 
obtained. 

This also includes the Ski Trip 2019 (February 2019) which is classified 
as an adventurous activity and as such should be planned and approved 
on EVOLVE at least 28 days before taking place. 

5.2.1

Medium

Although a Draft Finance / Purchasing Policy is in place at the School 
which clearly identifies delegated spending limits; the document has not 
yet been presented to the Full Governing Body for approval and formal 
endorsement.

The Draft Finance / Purchasing Policy should 
be provided to the Full Governing Body for 
approval.

This should be recorded within the Governing 
Body minutes, to ensure that a permanent 
record of the limits and authorised staff is 
available at the school.

30 November 2019

5.2.2

Low

No Governor attendance sheets are currently maintained for Governing 
Body sub committee meetings that are not clerked by the School's 
Governor Support Officer.

Attendance sheets for all Governing Body sub 
committee meetings must be retained at 
School and held in a manner that makes them 
easy to locate.

Implemented 

T
udalen 61



5.2.3

High

The School are in the process of formulating new Policies and 
Documents for the recently opened School. While a Policy file was 
available during the review, it did not contain many of the statutory 
policies and documents that are required. 

It is accepted that there is a Policy Review Committee in place at the 
School and a number of policies were submitted for review on the 27th 
September 2018.

However, the corresponding minutes are not explicit in that they state 
that ‘some’ policies were forwarded for recommendation / approval by 
the Governing Body.

It was also noted that only 3 members of the Policy Committee were 
present for the meeting.

Please refer to Appendix A.

The Polices identified should be reviewed in 
line with statutory requirements.

It should be ensured that following each Policy 
/ Document review, it is presented to the Full 
Governing Body for endorsement with this 
clearly detailed in the Governing Body 
minutes for transparency.

30 November 2019

5.3.1

High

Dinner money received from Primary School pupils is updated to the 
Cashless system upon receipt by the School Clerk in the Lower School.

The money is subsequently passed to the main office (Upper School) at 
the end of each day and placed in the safe.

At the end of each week, the money is counted by the School Clerk in 
the main office and deposited at the bank.

The handover of cash between the Lower and Upper School is not 
verified, in that signatures are not obtained from staff nor any receipts 
provided. 

Furthermore, the cash is not checked / counted by the School Clerk 

When income is passed from the Lower 
School to the Upper School at the end of each 
day, the cash should be checked, and details 
of the handover witnessed on the income 
record by the signatures of both the persons 
depositing and receiving cash, as evidence of 
the amounts involved.

31 October 2019

T
udalen 62



based in the Upper School until it is prepared for banking.

5.3.2

High

A review of the school meals balances report at the time of audit 
revealed that the total arrears at the time of the audit amounted to 
£12,629.64.  Of this amount staff arrears totalled £524.40 (with 1 staff 
member owing £132.14).

It was also noted that £668.02 was owed from the School Budget in 
respect of hospitality.  Discussion at the School revealed that Catering 
provided provisions to staff who worked during evenings and holidays to 
facilitate the closure of the old School and opening of the new one.  This 
was also used as an opportunity to trial the cashless system prior to 
being rolled out to pupils.  

No school meals arrears returns have been submitted by the School to 
Catering Finance since it opened in September 2018 and no follow up 
of arrears undertaken.  It is a requirement to submit this information 
every half term in accordance with the Council’s School Meals Arrears 
Recovery Protocols. 

It was also identified that overdraft limits have been amended on the 
cashless system to ensure that all staff and pupils are able to take a 
meal.

Where arrears are in excess of the prescribed 
limits, then as per recovery protocols, these 
should be formally referred to Catering 
Finance for further recovery action.

Details of the current arrears should be 
submitted to Catering Finance immediately 
and termly thereafter. 

It is not considered as appropriate to use the 
delegated School budget to fund staff meals 
and alternative arrangements should be made 
in future.

31 March 2020

5.3.3

High

A list of all pupils currently listed at the School as eligible for a Free 
School Meal was obtained and compared to the latest Free School 
Meals Schedule from Housing Benefits and supplementary notifications.

It was noted that there are 13 pupils listed as being entitled to a Free 
School Meal at the School despite no authorisation being received to 
confirm eligibility.

For all pupils in receipt of free school meals, 
confirmation of eligibility should be obtained 
by the School prior to allowing a free school 
meals to be provided.  The School should 
liaise with the Council's Housing benefit 
Service to confirm eligibility.

31 March 2020

T
udalen 63



If it is confirmed that the recipient of free 
school meals is not entitled, then the 
necessary arrears will need to be recovered. 

For those pupils where eligibility is not 
confirmed the arrears should be pursued in 
accordance with 5.3.2.

5.4.2

Low

Whilst details of the corresponding cheque payments are recorded on 
the copy orders, the cheque advice slips are retained in a separate file.

Additionally, it was noted that while cheque signatories examine 
documentation prior to authorising cheques this is currently not 
evidenced by way of a signature on the corresponding cheque advice 
slip. 

Cheque signatories should examine the 
supporting documentation before signing 
cheques and endorse the SIMS cheque 
authorisation slips to confirm the actual details 
on the cheques are correct.
The cheque advice slips should be attached to 
the corresponding copy orders and invoices 
for retention.

Implemented 

5.5.1

High

A review of the Purchase Card expenditure for the current academic 
year identified the following items of expenditure that are considered 
unnecessary / inappropriate:

• 4.2.19 - Gifts of Nature - £40.00 
• 17.1.19 - With Love Flowers - £20.00
• 5.2.19 - Judies Florist - £16.00
• 4.3.19 - Judies Florist - £21.00
• 3.3.19 - Judies Florist - £16.00
• 11.3.19 - Gifts of Nature - £30.00
• 3.4.19 - Gifts of Nature - £90.00

Discussion at the School revealed that these purchases were made on 
behalf of the School as a goodwill gesture for staff who were either 
leaving, undergoing treatment for illness, or on maternity leave. 

The items listed are not considered 
appropriate and alternative arrangements to 
fund these activities should be made in future.

Implemented 

T
udalen 64



5.5.2

Medium

Point 7 of the Cardholder Manual states:

'For every transaction that takes place reconciliation is required by both 
the cardholder and their identified authoriser. Reconciliation should be 
carried out on a regular basis as the system is available 24/7.  This 
process should be completed and up-to-date by the deadline advised in 
the monthly reminder email' 

Although it was evident on the Bank Statements that a reconciliation 
exercise had been undertaken, it was not possible to determine when 
and by whom as the bank statements had not been signed and dated.

Furthermore, there was no evidence of a reconciliation between the 
Bank statements and the Transaction Log, as items on the Transaction 
Log had not been ticked, signed or dated.

In accordance with the Purchase Card Notes 
and Guidance issued by the Procurement 
Service, care should be taken to ensure that 
the bank statements and Transaction Log are 
signed and dated by the person carrying out 
the reconciliation as evidence of when and by 
whom this was undertaken. 

Implemented 

5.6.1

Medium

The School Petty Cash account is still operated using the spending limits 
previously agreed by the Governing Body of the former Tonyrefail 
School.  This currently sets the individual reimbursement limit of £30.00 
per transaction.

Should the School wish to continue with the 
operation of a Petty Cash account the limits 
should be documented in the School's 
Financial Procedures and presented to the 
Governing Body for approval.

The cheque reimbursement level and 
individual transaction limits should be formally 
approved by the Governing Body, and be 
incorporated into the School Finance Policy 
(see also recommendation 5.2.1). 

30 November 2019

5.6.2

Low

A review of the Petty Cash expenditure from April 2019 to date, identified 
4 occasions where individual reimbursements have exceeded the £30 
limit that should be followed:

The School is reminded that the purpose of a 
petty cash account is to facilitate the purchase 
of minor items of expenditure. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 65



• £50.00 - fuel for school van
• £50.01 - fuel for school van 
• £68.90 - refreshments for pupils (Easter revision)
• £40.10 - refreshments open day  

Higher value items should be bought using the 
Purchase Card or via a SIMS order to ensure 
that the Petty Cash limits are adhered to and 
save on administrative time when processed 
via Petty Cash. 

5.6.3

Medium

Discussions at the School identified that the budget holder is not 
required to authorise expenditure prior to expenditure being incurred, 
instead there is an informal conversation with the budget holder to 
approve the payment prior to purchase.

Since April 2019 there have been 37 items of expenditure, however 
there is no documented evidence of authorisation from a budget holder 
available.

Prior to purchase, it should be ensured that 
the budget holder formally authorises the 
expenditure on the Petty Cash requisition 
form.

This procedure is currently in place where 
orders are raised on SIMS or via the Purchase 
Card and should also be extended to include 
Petty Cash also. 

31 December 2019

5.6.4

Medium

While a manual record of petty cash transactions is maintained and kept 
up to date, SIMS is only updated periodically when the cash in hand 
balance is low and requires a reimbursement cheque to be drawn.

For the current financial year SIMS has only been updated 3 times with 
petty cash expenditure:

• 13.5.19 – April / May - £186.36
• 17.5.19 - May - £242.25
• 12.6.19 - May/June - £181.26

SIMS should be updated on a regular basis (at 
least weekly) with details of Petty Cash 
payments made.

Implemented 

T
udalen 66



5.6.5

Medium

There is currently no evidence of a regular, independent reconciliation 
of the Petty Cash account.

Discussions at the School identified that the account is reviewed by the 
Finance Manager each time a reimbursement is required, although this 
could not be evidenced as the records at the School show no evidence 
of a review being undertaken, i.e. there are no items ticked as checked 
or a signature of the person undertaking the review. 

The Petty Cash records should be 
independently reviewed on a regular basis 
with evidence of this review available at the 
School.

This could be facilitated either by the 
introduction of the standard Petty Cash 
reconciliation pro forma or the records being 
signed and dated by the Finance Manager 
following her check.

Implemented 

AUDIT NAME: Y PANT COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL FOLLOW UP

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 17/09/2019

INTRODUCTION
Y Pant Comprehensive School was subject to a routine Internal Audit visit in June 2017.  A follow up review was undertaken in March 2018 at the request of 
Audit Committee.  The original review concluded that the overall control environment in relation to the School’s financial and governance arrangements was 
‘insufficient and requires improvement’.  The follow up review concluded that whilst improvements had been made since the original review, work was still 
required in respect of implementing all recommendations in their entirety. 
Following the presentation of the follow up final report to Audit Committee on 5th November 2018, a further review was requested by Audit Committee to 
ascertain whether recommendations made at the time have been successfully implemented. 
This audit review provides the outcome of the follow up review that has now been completed.  
The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body at their meeting on 10th October 2019. 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
The objective of the review was to establish the status of the recommendations raised within the previous final report (issued October 2018).  Audit testing 
was carried out on the following areas of administration: 

 Governance 
 Safeguarding & Educational Visits   
 School Private Fund   
 Purchase Card   
 Purchasing   

T
udalen 67



 School Income  
 Assets 

 AUDIT OPINION
The current Business Manager and Estates & Lettings Manager were appointed to their respective roles in September 2018 and there has been a clear 
commitment made by all staff to addressing the recommendations previously made.  This is evidenced below in the evaluations and this follow up review now 
concludes that the overall control environment in relation to the School’s financial and governance arrangements is effective with opportunity for improvement.    
Following a detailed review of each of the following areas the current status is shown below:   
Governance 
The control environment is respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
The roles and responsibilities of the Governing Body and its sub committees have been set out in writing.  The Governing Body and its sub committees have 
the requisite number of members and quorate levels for meetings are achieved.  All minutes examined had been appropriately signed and the financial limits 
for delegated authority have been agreed and minuted.  
Staff involved in the financial decision making process have these responsibilities delegated in their job descriptions and regular budgetary information from 
SIMS is provided to the Governing Body.  All statutory policies and documents were in present at the time of the audit and there is a rolling review programme 
in place.
A Register of Business Interests is in place at the school with all current declarations present at the time of the audit.   It was however noted that while 
attendance sheets were present at the school for all Governing Body meetings, and the majority of sub committee meetings held, attendance sheets could 
not be located for 3 of the sub committee meetings during the current academic year.   
Safeguarding & Educational Visits 
The control environment in respect of Safeguarding & Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 
The School has a Child Protection Policy in place which was last reviewed and presented to the Governing Body in September 2018.  This was distributed to 
all staff and a staff list was available at the time of the audit to demonstrate that each member of staff has received, read and understood the Policy, which is 
a requirement of the Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board. Good practice was also noted in that new members of staff are added to the list throughout the year and 
asked to provide the same confirmation.    
Level 1 Safeguarding training was found to be up to date in respect of all current staff, and there are 8 members of staff at the school who have received Level 
3 training.  It was noted that for 1 of these individuals the training has now expired however a further training session has been arranged.  The school may 
benefit from the introduction of an electronic pro forma including all staff names, allowing training dates and requirements to be identified with ease.  
A record is held at the School of staff who have been DBS checked and Internal Audit is able to provide assurance that all staff at the school received a DBS 
clearance prior to commencing in post. 
The School use the EVOLVE system to document and authorise all planned trips, and all trips examined had been updated in accordance with the prescribed 

T
udalen 68



timescales.  For routine off-site visits such as sporting fixtures/tournaments the Headteacher should ensure that a permanent record is made and retained, 
with staff made fully aware of their responsibilities for future events. 
School Private Fund
The control environment in respect of the School Private Fund is considered to be effective.  
The Treasurer maintains detailed records with an adequate audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions. An electronic ledger is maintained in the 
format included within the School Private Fund Regulations, and this was found to be up to date at the time of the audit with both income and expenditure 
transactions.
The account is subject to regular reconciliation and a copy of the most recent bank mandate is held on file.  Evidence to support private fund expenditure 
incurred is also available at the school and there were no instances noted of fund expenditure that was not in line with the School Private Fund Regulations 
within the sample period examined. 
A substantial amount of income is received online and a process has been introduced to ensure that all online payments are updated to both the main ledger 
and relevant sub account i.e. Ski Trip, Safari Park.  Due to the online facility being used to process the majority of fund payments, the administration of trip 
income lies with the Finance Office who liaise closely with the individual trip organisers.  Statements of Account are now completed in respect of all trips and 
retained on file by the Fund Treasurer. 
There are no findings contained within this report in respect of School Private Fund.  
Purchase Card
The control environment in respect of the Purchase Card is considered to be effective.  
The school has two Purchase cards in operation and there was a sufficient audit trail in respect of evidence to support expenditure via both cards.   All 
purchases reviewed during the sample period were supported with documentation i.e. receipts, invoices, online orders and no instances of inappropriate 
expenditure were identified within the sample period examined.  
A Transaction Log is maintained in respect of each card and updated immediately after a purchase has been made, with entries reconciled to the bank 
statements upon receipt.  A card sharing log is in place to record instances where either of the cards are used by other members of staff and no instances of 
card details being stored to online accounts were identified. 
There are no findings contained within this report in respect of Purchase Card.  
Purchasing  
The control environment in respect of the Purchasing system is considered to be effective.  
The School has a Financial Procedures & Policies document in place and this was last reviewed and updated in September 2018.  A large number of purchases 
are now made using the Purchase Card and for orders raised using SIMS there is a process in place in that all purchases are authorised by the budget holder 
prior to committing the school to expenditure.  From a sample of 10 orders examined all had been authorised in accordance with this procedure and were 
raised on SIMS prior to receipt of the goods and invoice.  All delivery notes and invoices showed evidence of being reviewed and all payments within the 
sample were supported by valid VAT invoices.  Cheque signatories examine documentation prior to authorising cheques and this is evidence by way of a 
signature on the corresponding cheque advice slip.

T
udalen 69



Cancelled orders are appropriately marked and there was evidence that pending orders are regularly reviewed.  Based on the sample of transactions examined 
the non-order invoice facility is being appropriately used.  
There are no findings contained within this report in respect of Purchasing.
School Income 
The control environment in respect of School Income is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 
The School has developed a Financial Procedures and Responsibilities Policy that details how each area of administration should be managed with the roles 
and responsibilities of the individuals presently involved.  There is also a comprehensive Charging and School Lettings Policy in place at the School and for 
all current hires (of which there are 20) a signed Facility Booking Form was present which had been signed by both the Headteacher and hirer.  It was however 
noted that this Form does not currently include reference to the payment terms and arrears procedures.  
At the time of the audit a total of £5041.13 was owed to the School in respect of invoices in excess of 61 days old.  While there is a procedure in place for 
chasing outstanding debts, Management need to determine the way forward with these debtors, as a number of these are long term.   The use of an updated 
Facility Booking Form to include the payment terms and conditions of hire will help to facilitate the future billing process and follow up of arrears. 
This report also recommends that responsibility for raising invoices on SIMS be given to the Estates & Lettings Manager allowing the Business Manager to 
remain sufficiently independent to allow for a segregation of duties between the raising of invoices, and receipt of income / bank reconciliation process. 
Whilst all income received was appropriately receipted and banked during the sample period examined slight delays were identified in the update of this 
income onto SIMS. 
Assets 
The control environment in respect of Assets is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 
The school does not require a formal Building Development Plan due to it being recently built, however a schedule of works to be undertaken is maintained 
by the Estates & Lettings Manager.  The School Inventory was found to be robust and completed using excel with individual sheets maintained for each room 
; with each room also cross referenced to a school building room plan.  This process was introduced following the appointment of the Estates & Lettings 
Manager in September 2018 and will be reviewed annually during the Summer holidays.
The School sell a variety of school uniform items and at the time of the audit the value of the stock in hand was in excess of £42k.  While it is accepted that a 
large uniform order was received into stock shortly prior to the audit for sale during July, the closing stock prior to this was calculated and totalled £19k and is 
also considered excessive.  While stock checks are undertaken twice a year, and a detailed list of items sold passed to the office with any income for banking, 
an up to date stock record is not maintained.  This report recommends that measures are put in place to avoid over stocking and to ensure that an accurate 
stock in hand record is maintained. 
Implementation of the recommendations contained within this report will enhance the control environment further.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

T
udalen 70



5.1.1

Low

Attendance sheets were present at the school in respect of all Governing 
Body meetings and the majority of sub committee meetings held.  
However, for the following 3 sub-committee meetings held during the 
current academic year no signed attendance sheets were present : 

• 12.6.18 Redundancy Committee
• 7.3.19  Staffing & Curriculum Committee 
• 9.4.19  Pupil Discipline & Exclusion Committee

Attendance sheets for all Governing Body and 
sub committee meetings must be retained at 
the School and held in a manner that makes 
them easy to locate.

Implemented

5.2.1

Medium

Although the document 'Planning and Approval Procedures for 
Educational Visits' states that schools can determine their own planning 
and approval requirements for school trips, it also states that schools are 
strongly advised to use the EVOLVE system.

Examination of the EVOLVE system identified that whilst all school trips 
are entered onto EVOLVE, routine off-site visits such as sporting fixtures 
are not.

Discussion at the school established that a list is emailed weekly to the 
Estates & Lettings Manager with details of each sporting fixture, location 
and details of the pupils attending.   However, these emails are 
subsequently deleted at the end of each week once the fixtures have 
taken place.  

In addition to manual risk assessments, 
EVOLVE should be used to document all off-
site visits, including those in relation to 
sporting fixtures / tournaments etc. 

All staff should be made aware of their 
responsibilities to avoid any confusion over 
future tournaments / fixtures.  

Implemented

5.3.1

Medium

The Estates & Lettings Manager is responsible for managing all school 
bookings and hires.   However, invoices are currently raised on SIMS by 
the Business Manager who is also responsible for the subsequent 
receipt of income and bank reconciliation process. 
It is however accepted that the copy invoices present at the School were 
authorised by the Estates & Lettings Manager and discussion at the 
School revealed that the process is undertaken simultaneously by both 

Responsibility for raising invoices on SIMS 
should be given to the Estates & Lettings 
Manager.  Invoices should continue to be 
authorised by this person (who has been 
delegated this authority) and is best placed to 
ensure that the invoices are correctly raised in 
accordance with the booking / hire.

Implemented

T
udalen 71



members of staff. The Business Manager is then sufficiently 
independent to allow for a segregation of 
duties and can continue to receipt income and 
undertake the process of bank reconciliation.  

5.3.2

Low

While the Charging and School Lettings Policy clearly specifies the 
charging and arrears policy of the school, examination of the Facility 
Booking Form used by hirers revealed that the payment terms, 
conditions and arrears procedures are currently not specified.   

The school should update the Facility Booking 
Form to include the payment terms and 
conditions of hire, and arrears policy as 
detailed within the Charging and School 
Lettings Policy. 

Implemented 

5.3.3

Medium

Examination of the Aged Debtor Report from SIMS revealed that:

• There is £764.99 owed to the school from 8 debtors in respect
             of invoices in excess of 61 days old
• There is an additional £4276.14 owed to the school from a 
             further 18 debtors in respect of invoices in excess of 91 days 
             old.

Whilst there was evidence to demonstrate that the school have been 
chasing these arrears, many are longer term debts which may need to 
be written off.  

The amounts outstanding to the school should 
be followed up as soon as possible in 
accordance with the Charging and School 
Lettings Policy.

The Headteacher should consider each 
balance outstanding to determine if any of the 
debtors are to be written off.

The use of an updated Facility Booking Form 
to include the payment terms and conditions 
of hire (as detailed above) will also help to 
facilitate the billing process and subsequent 
follow up of arrears. 

31 October 2019

5.3.4

Medium

For the sample period examined (March – June 2019) the following 
delays were identified between the receipt of income and its update to 
SIMS:  

Date Income Amount          Date Input on 

SIMS should be updated as soon as possible 
following receipt and on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it is an accurate reflection of the 
income received at the school. 
This will also allow for an accurate and timely 

Implemented

T
udalen 72



 Received               £                     SIMS
21.03.19 £106.50 26.03.19
28.03.19 £163.50 02.04.19
04.04.19 £194.60 09.04.19
02.05.19 £875.50 02.05.19
09.05.19 £574.00 14.05.19
16.05.19 £667.50 20.05.19
23.05.19 £739.00 04.06.19
06.06.19 £873.00 11.06.19
13.06.19 £1,724.50 18.06.19

reconciliation of the account upon receipt of 
the bank statements. 

5.4.1

Medium

The school sell a variety of items in its School Uniform Shop.  While a 
stock of items is held throughout the year for sale as and when required 
to parents/pupils the majority of uniform is ordered and purchased during 
July in readiness for purchases in respect of the new academic year.  A 
review of the School Uniform Records revealed that:

• At the time of the audit the balance of stock in hand was in 
excess of £42k.  While it is accepted that a large order was 
raised and received into stock shortly before the audit visit, a 
calculation of the base stock prior to this order was found to total 
£19k. 

• While stock checks are undertaken twice a year (July & August) 
and a detailed list of items sold passed to the office with the 
sales income for banking, an up to date stock record is not 
maintained throughout the year.  

The school should carefully consider its next 
school uniform order to ensure that excessive 
stocks are not held and items currently in 
stock are utilised.

A Stock Control Record should be introduced 
and updated regularly with details of the items 
sold and current stock balances.

The handover of income to the office for 
banking should also be verified by the 
provision of two signatures as evidence of the 
amount involved i.e. the person handing over 
and receiving the money. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 73



PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES

AUDIT NAME: PARKING SERVICES

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 10/09/2019

INTRODUCTION
In August 2012 Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council became responsible for the enforcement of the majority of on-street and off-street parking 
regulations across the County Borough under a scheme called Civil Parking Enforcement. Civil Parking Enforcement encompasses all off-street car parks 
currently managed by the Council, as well as on-street traffic regulation order lines and signs - e.g. double-yellow lines, residential parking bays, school 
clearways (zig-zag markings), etc.
The back office processing for Penalty Charge Notices (PCN’s) was previously the responsibility of Merthyr Tydfil CBC, however this arrangement was 
reversed in April 2018 following the introduction of a new SLA which placed responsibility on Rhondda Cynon Taf for providing back office support for both 
Councils. This role was further extended in April 2019 to include neighbouring Council’s including Caerphilly, Newport, Torfaen, Monmouthshire and Blaenau 
Gwent. There is also further potential scope to expand the operation to other local Councils in future. 
In October 2017 RCT Cabinet approved the introduction of a mobile camera parking enforcement solution to help tackle complaints of vehicles parking on 
Keep Clear markings, zig-zag lines near pedestrian crossings and abuse of parking restrictions outside of schools. Following the successful procurement of 
this vehicle the new service commenced on the 3rd September 2018 in conjunction with the start of the new academic year.  At the time of this review 3588 
PCN’s had been issued as a result of camera footage which has been captured from the mobile vehicle. 
The Council is committed to safely managing traffic flow as well as on/off street parking. RCT currently employs 14 Civil Enforcement Officers (CEO’s) who 

T
udalen 74



patrol highways and car parks within the County Borough, and who issue Penalty Charge Notices (PCN’s) to drivers who park their vehicles unlawfully in 
breach of car park and traffic regulations.   

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
In accordance with the Internal Audit Plan for financial year 2019/20, agreed by Audit Committee, a review of the key controls within the system for Civil 
Parking Enforcement was undertaken.  Audit testing was carried out on the process for capturing, reviewing and retaining evidence from the mobile camera 
enforcement vehicles to establish whether the back office support for processing PCN’s is operating effectively. 
• The primary purpose of the review is to provide management with an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system. 
• The objective of the review is to ensure that:   
• The process for capturing, reviewing and retaining evidence obtained by the mobile enforcement vehicles is effective, subject to appropriate probity 

checks and PCN’s issued accordingly bases on evidence obtained. 

AUDIT OPINION
The overall control environment in relation to the process for issuing Penalty Charge Notices (PCN's) and back office support functions is 
considered to be effective.
Capturing Evidence
The mobile enforcement vehicle is fitted with a mounted camera which is linked to a programmed mapping system.  The camera is automatically activated 
when the vehicle enters one of the restricted zones, as follows:  
• Outside schools (School Keep Clear markings)
• Bus stops
• Pedestrian Crossing (zig-zag lines)
The camera also deactivates on exiting these zones with all footage captured and uploaded to Roadflow (a software system) via a 3G mobile network 
throughout the day. While this process was found to be working effectively it was identified that the camera can be also turned / moved manually by the driver 
via a remote control console which is placed next to the driver. This could result in the driver looking away from the road momentarily to activate the camera.  
This report recommends that the console be ergonomically located on the dashboard for safety, however if this is not possible Management should consider 
instructing staff that the remote console should only be used when the vehicle is stationery unless absolutely necessary. 
Review of Evidence
All members of the Team are qualified Civil Enforcement Officers and as such are suitably qualified to review the evidence captured. A process is in place 
whereby all video footage captured by the vehicle camera and uploaded to the system is reviewed by one of two Team Leaders for consistency and 
independence. This review is undertaken directly on the Roadflow system and during the sample period examined all reviews were carried out on a timely 

T
udalen 75



basis by Officers who are experienced in this role.    
Back Office Support / Issue of PCN’s 
All documentation relating to the issue of a PCN is stored on the 360 system.   This is used to store all documentation generated from the system and 
correspondence received from 3rd parties (e.g. letters from offenders) as well as photo and video evidence obtained from the mobile enforcement vehicle. 
The system has been programmed so that key functions are automated / system generated and, as a result progressions through the various stages of the 
process are more streamlined.
Of the 30 randomly selected cases examined during the review, all had been paid within Stage 1 (issue of PCN) of the recovery process. 
The 360 system was found to be up-to-date for the sampled cases and all relevant and required correspondence issued from the Enforcement Team (including 
all camera footage issued as evidence and from offenders) was present on Roadflow.
Camera Enforcement Vehicle 
While still in the early stages of operation, it is clear that the camera enforcement vehicle has added a significant tool in the Council’s ability in combating 
illegal parking in the designated, restricted zones. However, the full potential of utilising this facility is currently limited in two ways;
Only one vehicle is in operation therefore coverage is restricted / limited. 
The number of enforceable zones is currently limited to only bus stops, outside schools and pedestrian crossings.
Management may wish to consider the procurement of a second enforcement vehicle. The introduction of a second vehicle will allow a greater area to be 
covered simultaneously, hence increasing the number contraventions identified and PCN’s issued. A second vehicle would also allow Management to further 
extend the number of enforceable zones currently patrolled. It is however accepted that the long term goal is to reduce the number of contraventions identified 
and the increased presence of a second vehicle will aid as an additional deterrent, and improved safety across the County Borough. The cost effectiveness 
procuring a second vehicle will need to be evaluated by Management.     
The implementation of the recommendations made within this report will enable Management to enhance the overall control environment further.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

5.1.1

Medium

The mobile enforcement vehicle has a roof mounted camera which is 
programmed using a software package called Roadflow.  This links to a 
mapping system and the camera is automatically activated when the 
vehicle enters one of the restricted zones (which has been programmed 
for RCT).  The camera also de activates once it has left the zone with 
any footage captured uploaded to the Roadflow system via 3G mobile 
network throughout the day. 

The remote console should be more suitably 
located near or on the dashboard if possible.

If it is not possible to relocate the remote to a 
safer/more suitable position then 
Management should consider instructing staff 
that the remote console should only be used 

Implemented 

T
udalen 76



It was identified that the camera can be manually turned on by the driver. 
This is done via a remote control console which is placed on the central 
console next to the driver. 

The current placement of the remote console is not best suited or 
considered safe, as it could lead the driver to look away from the road to 
locate the necessary switch or button. 

when the vehicle is stationery and not whilst 
moving unless absolutely necessary. 

5.1.2

Low

There is currently one enforcement vehicle used to cover the entire 
County Borough of RCT.  This is a considerable geographical area of 
164 square miles and includes a number of Traffic Regulation Orders 
(TRO’s) including:

• 136 School Keep Clear zones,
• 567 Bus stops 
• 141 pedestrian crossings.

Since the vehicle was put into use in September 2018, footage captured 
has resulted in the issue of 3588 PCN’s. 

(See Appendix 1 for a monthly breakdown of PCN’s issued since the 
service started).

Management may wish to consider the 
procurement of a second enforcement vehicle 
to increase the full potential of this facility. The 
cost effectiveness of procuring a second 
enforcement vehicle would need to be 
evaluated by Management.  

The introduction of a second vehicle will allow 
a greater area to be covered simultaneously, 
and increase the number contraventions 
identified and PCN’s issued.  

 A second vehicle would also allow 
Management to further extend the number of 
enforceable zones currently patrolled.

Implemented 

T
udalen 77



T
udalen w

ag



Overview of General Ledger

Stephanie Davies

Head of Finance : Education and Financial Reporting

5th November 2019

T
udalen 79

A
gendw

m
 7



Content

• Role of Audit Committee with regards to 

General Ledger

• What is the General Ledger?

• Controls

• Monitoring Budgets

• Internal Audit and External Audit

• Statement of Accounts

T
udalen 80



Role of Audit Committee

Statement of Purpose (extracts)

……….It provides independent and high level focus on the audit, 
assurance and reporting arrangements that underpin good 
governance and financial standards.

………to provide independent assurance to the Members of Rhondda 
Cynon Taf County Borough Council of the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the internal control environment. 

……..oversees the financial reporting

T
udalen 81



Role of Audit Committee

To receive reports on the 

performance of the Internal Audit 

Service throughout the year 

particularly in relation to matters 

of financial probity and corporate 

Governance.

Review, scrutinise and issue reports 

and recommendations in relation to 

the Authority’s financial affairs, and 

providing the opportunity for direct 

discussion with the auditor(s) on 

these.

Review and comment on

the Authority’s certified

draft financial statements

before their approval by

Council.

T
udalen 82



Role of Audit Committee

General Ledger – seeking assurance on the adequacy 

and effectiveness of the internal control systems operating 

within the General Ledger to determine whether:

+                         =

It is properly 

maintained

It accurately 

records the 

financial 

transactions of 

the Council

It forms the basis 

of the Council’s 

financial 

statements

T
udalen 83



What is the General Ledger ?

• ALL the Council’s financial transactions are 

represented in the General Ledger

– Payroll

– Invoices raised

– Invoices paid

– Council Tax received

– Schools transactions

– Grants / RSG

• Records Budget and Actuals

• Civica – contract details

T
udalen 84



Controls

• Access

• Reconciles budget

• Balance Sheet balances

• Interface controls

• Year end revenue reconciliations

• Upgrades

T
udalen 85



Monitoring Budgets

• Robust Financial Management

• Ledger structure reflect management structure

• Quarterly Finance and Performance Reporting to 

Members

T
udalen 86



Internal and External Audit

Latest Internal Audit Review

Overall the control environment for the General 

Ledger and Accounting framework is considered to be 

effective with Civica Financials being used, a system 

which meets statutory and management accounting 

and reporting requirements.

External Audit also undertake their own testing as part 

of systems work and the Statement of Accounts audit.

T
udalen 87



Statement of Accounts

• Core Financial Statements reconcile to the General Ledger

– Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

– Movement in Reserves Statement

– Balance Sheet

• Comprehensive year end timetable 

– Ensure all transactions updated into the General Ledger

• Eg Asset Register, Payroll, Purchasing Card transactions

– 31st May 2019

• External Audit

– True and Fair View

– 31st July 2019

T
udalen 88



Any questions?

Thank you

T
udalen 89



T
udalen w

ag


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion
	3 Rôl yr Archwiliad Mewnol (yn cynnwys diweddariad ar y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol Rhanbarthol a Rennir)
	5 Cyflawniad Archwilio Mewnol
	6 Aseiniadau Archwilio Terfynol
	7 Trosolwg o'r Trefniadau Llywodraethu sydd ar waith mewn perthynas â'r System Ariannol Graidd - Cyfriflyfr Cyffredinol

